
City Finance and Governance Committee 
Special Meeting Agenda, Tuesday, 5 September 2023 at 5.00 pm

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY FINANCE AND 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA & REPORTS 
for the Special meeting 

 
Tuesday, 5 September 2023 

at 5.00 pm 
 

in the Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall 
 

© 2023 CITY OF ADELAIDE. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
 

Public Document Pack



City Finance and Governance Committee 
Special Meeting Agenda, Tuesday, 5 September 2023 at 5.00 pm

 
 

Members – The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith 
Councillor Dr Siebentritt (Chair) 

Councillor Li (Deputy Chair) 
Councillors Abrahimzadeh, Couros, Davis, Elliott, Giles, Hou, Martin, Noon and Snape 

 
 

  
1.    Acknowledgement of Country 

At the opening of the City Finance and Governance Committee meeting, the Chair 
will state: 

‘Council acknowledges that we are meeting on traditional Country of the Kaurna 
people of the Adelaide Plains and pays respect to Elders past and present.  We 
recognize and respect their cultural heritage, beliefs and relationship with the land. 
We acknowledge that they are of continuing importance to the Kaurna people living 
today. 
And we also extend that respect to other Aboriginal Language Groups and other First 
Nations who are present today.’ 

 

 

 
2.    Apologies and Leave of Absence 

On Leave -  

Councillor Giles 

 

 

 
3.   Reports for Recommendation to Council 

 
 

 
 3.1   Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 for Consultation 

 
3 - 37 

 
4.   Closure 

 
 



City Finance and Governance Committee – Agenda – Tuesday, 5 September 2023

 

Tuesday, 5 September 2023 
City Finance and Governance 
Committee 

Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 for 
Consultation 
 

Strategic Alignment - Enabling Priorities 
Program Contact: Manager 
Bree Goodchild, Strategy, 
Insights and Performance 
 

Public 
 

Approving Officer:  Michael 
Sedgman, Chief Operating 
Officer 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Council is required under the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) to review the suite of Strategic Management Plans 
within two years of a periodic election. The Strategic Plan review project will facilitate this, by incorporating the 
development of the 2024-2028 Strategic Plan and a review of the Strategic Management Framework, alongside the 
work being brought separately to Council on the Long-Term Financial Plan, City Plan, and Asset and Infrastructure 
Management Plans.  

Based on numerous Council workshops, reports and decisions, research and community feedback into Council’s 
varied plans, policies and strategies, market research, data and insights, this report proposes a Draft Strategic Plan 
2024-2028 for Council’s consideration.  

The Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 proposes the vision “Our Adelaide. Bold in our approach, Proud of who we are” 
supported by five Aspirations of Our Community, Our Environment, Our Economy, Our Places and Our 
Corporation. Objectives, Strategies and Key Actions identify how Council will deliver on the Plan.  

The endorsed Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 will be available for public consultation for a 6-week period, to seek 
the views of our community. Responses will be analysed and modifications to the draft will be considered ahead of 
a proposed adoption of the Strategic Plan 2024-2028 in December 2023.  

There are two other related key activities which are occurring concurrently to the Strategic Plan. Council 
administration is currently preparing a report on the market research undertaken as part of the Strategic Plan 
review project. The administration is also preparing a report outlining an Integrated Engagement Framework for the 
Strategic Plan and other key strategy documents currently under review or development. Information relating to 
both the market research and Integrated Community Engagement Framework will be provided to the City Finance 
and Governance Committee at its meeting on 19 September 2023.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The following recommendation will be presented to Council on 12 September 2023 for consideration 

THAT THE CITY FINANCE AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL 
THAT COUNCIL 
1. Endorses the Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028, Attachment A to Item 3.1 on the Agenda for the Special 

meeting of the City Finance and Governance Committee held on 5 September 2023, for public 
consultation, commencing 9.00am 15 September to 5.00pm 30 October 2023. 

2. Notes the Market Research provided in Attachment B to Item 3.1 on the Agenda for the Special meeting of 
the City Finance and Governance Committee held on 5 September 2023, as part of the evidence base of 
the Strategic Plan  

3. Notes the Strategic Plan Review Project Timeline as provided in Attachment C to Item 3.1 on the Agenda 
for the Special meeting of the City Finance and Governance Committee held on 5 September 2023. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.1



 

City Finance and Governance Committee – Agenda – Tuesday, 5 September 2023

IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS 
 

City of Adelaide 
2020-2024 
Strategic Plan 

Strategic Alignment – Enabling Priorities  

Policy Council’s Community Consultation Policy requires that the consultation period for the 
Strategic Plan be open for a period of 6 weeks 

Consultation 
Consultation on the Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 will be open from 15 September 2023 
to 30 October 2023. The results of the consultation feedback and analysis will be reported 
to Council in November 2023 

Resource Consultation will be conducted using existing resources. There are no additional resources 
required as a result of this report  

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative There are no additional risks identified as a result of this report 

Opportunities There are no additional resources required as a result of this report 

23/24 Budget 
Allocation There are no additional budget resources required as a result of this report 

Proposed 24/25 
Budget Allocation There are no additional budget resources required as a result of this report 

Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative 
or (Expectancy of) 
Asset 

Not as a result of this report 

23/24 Budget 
Reconsideration  
(if applicable) 

Not as a result of this report 

Ongoing Costs 
(eg maintenance 
cost) 

Not as a result of this report 

Other Funding 
Sources 

Not as a result of this report 

 

  

Page 4



 

City Finance and Governance Committee – Agenda – Tuesday, 5 September 2023

DISCUSSION 
1. Over the past several months Council has provided direction to inform the development of the 2024-2028 

Strategic Plan through decisions, workshops and articulation of priorities of the 2023/24 Business Plan and 
Budget on the key issues, policy positions and the deliverables sought over this term.  

2. At its 18 April 2023 meeting, the City Finance and Governance Committee received a presentation and 
workshop on the development of the Strategic Plan 2024-2028. 

3. At its 25 July 2023 meeting, the City Finance and Governance Committee noted a State of the City report, 
which contained data, research and insights that formed a key part of the evidence base in the development 
of the Draft Strategic Plan. Council noted this report.  

4. At its 15 August 2023 meeting, the City Finance and Governance Committee received a report proposing a 
structure for the Strategic Plan.  

5. The Committee confirmed that the Strategic Plan should:  

5.1. clearly articulate the long-term goals of Council, and a four-year delivery plan (the detail)  

5.2. enable Council to build policy positions and build and review strategies and action plans over the 
Council term. 

6. As confirmed in the report to Committee on 15 August 2023, research has been conducted through both 
qualitative and quantitative methods to create an evidence base for decision making and inform the 
development of the draft. This research will continue to be analysed to test the content of the draft and to 
inform the final document.  

7. The structure for the Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 is based on Council’s decisions, feedback in 
workshops, and policy setting. It includes:  

7.1. Long Term considerations  

7.1.2. A Vision for the future of Adelaide – a leading aspirational statement summarising the focus of 
the plan and guiding decision-making on the future of the city. The proposed vision is “Our 
Adelaide. Bold in our approach. Proud of who we are.” 

7.1.3. Aspirations that help articulate the vision, expressed as outcomes which help shape future 
policy positions of Council. The proposed Aspirations are: 

7.1.3.1. Our Community will be vibrant connected and diverse 

7.1.3.2. Our Environment will be protected, resilient and sustainable 

7.1.3.3. Our Economy will be growing, innovative and responsive 

7.1.3.4. Our Places will be interesting, purposeful and safe 

7.1.3.5. Our Corporation will be high performing, customer centric and bold. 

7.2. 4 Year considerations incorporating:  

7.2.2. Principles that inform the primary areas of focus to drive outcomes across the four-year plan  

7.2.3. Objectives that describe what will be achieved and the strategies employed.  

7.2.4. Key Actions that describe what is being delivered under each objective relevant to Council’s 
responsibilities. 

7.2.5. Measures that define what success looks like. 

Consultation  
8. Seeking the views of the community is an essential part of the development of a new Strategic Plan. 

9. The Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 as shown in Attachment A will be available for public consultation for a 
6 week period in accordance with Council’s Community Consultation Policy and will occur between the 
15 September and 30 October 2023. 

10. To ensure the community is informed and aware of their opportunities to provide feedback into this process, 
consultation will include: 

10.1. Information about the Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 on Council’s website, Your Say site and 
newsletter and promoted through social media 

Page 5



 

City Finance and Governance Committee – Agenda – Tuesday, 5 September 2023

10.2. Face to Face information drop-in sessions will be conducted in Council’s Customer Centre, Library 
and community sites 

10.3. Face to Face discussions through visits to precinct groups and resident association meetings to share 
information and receive feedback 

10.4. Information will be provided to Council Members to forward to their respective networks as an option 

10.5. Communication to our stakeholder database (similar to the Business Plan and Budget communication)  

10.6. Communication to relevant influential leaders or government agencies such as the House of 
Assembly, Legislative Council, House of Representatives and Senate members, adjoining Councils, 
and Department of Premier and Cabinet. 

11. Responses will be analysed and modifications to the draft will be considered ahead of a proposed adoption 
of the Strategic Plan 2024-2028 in December 2023 

12. The consultation for the Strategic Plan is complementary to the consultation planned for the City Plan and 
Transport strategy. These activities form a critical part of the Integrated Community Engagement 
Framework, for which the Committee will receive a report at its 19 September 2023 meeting.  

Supporting the Strategic Plan 
13. Under Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA), Council must develop and adopt strategic 

management plans for the management of its area. The following documents comprise these strategic 
management plans: 

13.1. Strategic Plan 2024-2028 

13.2. Long Term Financial Plan 2023-2033 (revised annually) 

13.3. Asset Management Plans 

13.4. City Plan. 

14. These documents, together with supporting strategies, plans and policies create the City of Adelaide 
Strategic Management Framework 

Proposed Resource Plan 2024 - 2028 
15. A Resource Plan 2024-2028 is proposed to enable and support the delivery of the Strategic Plan 2024-28. 

This document outlines the financial, and non-financial resources required to achieve strategic objectives 
across the Strategic Management Plans by articulating:  

15.1. The financial principles and parameters that will enable the delivery of the Long-Term Financial Plan 

15.2. The revenue and financing structures 

15.3. The financial indicators, our position and targets 

15.4. The Administrative functions that are required to deliver the Strategic Plan for a four-year period. This 
will include the technology and people resources and workforce needs (which will align to a workforce 
strategy). 

16. The Resource Plan underpins the four-year delivery of the Strategic Plan by outlining the inputs required for 
delivery. The Strategic Plan and the Resource Plan will work in concert with the Long-Term Financial Plan, 
Asset Management Plans and City Plan to inform the Annual Business Plan and Budget. Council has a suite 
of strategies, plans and policies to support its decision making for the provision of services, programs and 
projects. Program Plans ensure all work is planned and delivered. 

Market Research 
17. As confirmed in the 15 August 2023 City Finance and Governance Committee meeting, market research has 

been conducted and is considered to be part of the evidence base for the Strategic Plan development, 
alongside the State of the City Report.  

18. The first of two market research activities was 11 in-depth interviews conducted by McGregor Tan with 
Strategic Leaders. A summary of this research is provided as Attachment B to this report.  

19. The feedback significantly aligns to the Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028.  

20. The key strengths identified by participants indicate that Adelaide is: 

20.1. A liveable City with a high standard of living 

20.2. A city of opportunities 

Page 6



 

City Finance and Governance Committee – Agenda – Tuesday, 5 September 2023

20.3. A small-scale city 

20.4. A city within a park 

20.5. Known for quality hospitality and major events. 

21. The participants identified the following challenges: 

21.1. Conservative mindset 

21.2. Need for a progressive and cohesive approach 

21.3. Population density management  

21.4. Residential housing increase 

21.5. Underutilised areas and further enhancing precincts. 

22. The future vision and the feedback from participants of Council’s role also align, and are reflected within the 
Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028. 

Project Timeline 
23. It is proposed that if the City Finance and Governance Committee are supportive of the draft, Council could 

then endorse the Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 for public consultation at its meeting on 
12 September 2023.  

24. Following this, public engagement will occur from 15 September to the 30 October 2023, with Council 
receiving engagement findings and an updated 2024-28 Strategic Plan for consideration in late November / 
early December.  

25. The Strategic Plan Review Project Timeline is provided as Attachment C. 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 

Attachment B – Summary results from McGregor Tan in-depth interviews research 

Attachment C – Strategic Plan Review Project Timeline 

 

- END OF REPORT -  

Page 7



Our Adelaide.
Bold in our 
approach.
Proud of 

who we are.

DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION

Page 8

Attachment A



City of Adelaide tampendi, ngadlu Kaurna yertangga 
banbabanbalyarnendi (inbarendi). Kaurna meyunna yaitya 
mattanya Womma Tarndanyako.

Parnako yailtya, parnuko tappa purruna, parnuko yerta ngadlu 
tampendi. Yellaka Kaurna meyunna itto yailtya, tappa purruna, 
yerta kuma burro martendi, burro warriappendi, burro tangka 
martulyaiendi. Kumarta yaitya miyurna iyangka yalaka ngadlu 
tampinthi.

City of Adelaide acknowledges the traditional Country of 
the Kaurna people of the Adelaide Plains and pays respect 
to Elders past and present. We recognise and respect their 
cultural heritage, beliefs and relationship with the land. We 
acknowledge that they are of continuing importance to the 
Kaurna people living today. And we also extend that respect to 
other Aboriginal Language Groups and other First Nations.

Kaurna 
Acknowledgement

Page 9



Contents

Our City and Community 

The City of Adelaide operates 
as a Capital City at the historic, 
geographic, economic and 
cultural centre of a metropolitan 
area of 1.3 million residents and 
a state of 1.7 million residents 
and as a local government with 
more than 25,000 residents. 
Our strategic planning needs to 
acknowledge and manage these 
dual responsibilities.

Purpose 

The City of Adelaide is required 
by legislation to develop 
and adopt plans for the 
management of its area. This 
Plan is supported by a Resource 
Plan which guides the financial, 
infrastructure and resources that 
underpin delivery over the next 
four years, as well as a suite of 
longer-term Plans.

City and Community Profile		  01

Lord Mayor introduction			   02

Council Members				    03

Strategic Planning Framework		  04

Vision						     05

Aspirations					     06

Principles					     06

Our Community				    07

Our Environment				    08

Our Economy				    09

Our Places					     10

Our Corporation				    11

Resource Plan				    13

Financial					     14

Infrastructure and Property		  18

Resources					     19

Page 10



1   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  PLAN

City and 
Community Profile

Despite our small footprint, the City of 
Adelaide is home to over 12,000 businesses 
and contributes close to 18% of the State’s 
economic value. Financial and insurance 
services; professional, scientific and technical 
services; and public administration and safety 
form the city’s three largest industries in 
terms of economic contribution.

Our community is vibrant and dynamic and 
consists of over 26,000 residents and over 
300,000 visitors to the city daily. Our resident 
base is diverse with 45% of our residents 
born overseas and 36% speaking a language 
other than English. Adelaide is also home to 
the young and young-at-heart. Nearly half 
of our residents are aged 18 to 34 and one in 
five have chosen to spend their golden years 
living in the city. 

15.6sqkm
total  

land area

760ha
Park Lands

including 29 Parks  
and 6 Squares

12,265
local  

businesses

14,660
total private  

dwellings

$21.9B
City of Adelaide  
Gross Regional 

Product  
17.6% of Gross State Product

157,498
local jobs

26,120
total residents

47%
aged between  

18 -34

20%
aged 60 and 

over

45%
born overseas

36%
speak a 

language other 
than English

26%
study at Tafe or 

University

50%
renting

Page 11



2 

Lord Mayor
Introduction

Shaping the future of a city requires bold 
thinking and long-term planning.

The capital city council is custodian of the 
heart of our state and it’s up to us to be both 
aspirational and audacious in our vision for 
Adelaide’s CBD.

But we also need to deliver on the core 
business of council – roads, rates, and rubbish 
– if we want to be bold in other areas and live 
in a city of which we can be proud.

The City of Adelaide’s Strategic Plan 2024-2028 
charts a course for our Council to achieve 
its long-term goals across the economy, the 
environment and throughout our community.

This Strategic Plan aspires to improve our 
streetscapes, deliver economic viability for 
businesses, help property owners to better 
utilise and profit from their investment and 
boost residential access, affordability and 
amenity.

The Plan also maps out how Council can 
maintain its assets, reduce kerbside waste, 
achieve zero functional homelessness, and 
sensibly increase our population to 50,000 
people by 2036.

It’s also about providing certainty for business 
owners, potential investors, and residents – 
matched by a commitment to deliver on our 
promises.

Our residents, workers, and visitors are also an 
important part of our Strategic Plan, and we 
value your feedback during this consultation 
period.

The Strategic Plan gives us an opportunity to 
choose a different trajectory for Adelaide, and 
its future over the next four years.

But importantly, it will be our promise to 
deliver on our commitments.

Dr Jane Lomax-Smith AM 

Lord Mayor City of Adelaide

Page 12



3   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  PLAN

Council Members

Dr Jane
Lomax-Smith AM
Lord Mayor

Arman
Abrahimzadeh OAM
Area Councillor

Phillip
Martin
North Ward Councillor

Janet
Giles
Area Councillor

Mary
Couros
North Ward Councillor

Carmel
Noon
Central Ward Councillor

David
Elliott
Central Ward Councillor

Simon
Hou
Central Ward Councillor

Jing
Li
Central Ward Councillor

Kieran
Snape
South Ward Councillor

Henry
Davis
South Ward Councillor

Dr Mark
Siebentritt
South Ward Councillor

Page 13



4 

This Plan forms part of the City of Adelaide’s suite of Strategic Management Plans:

Strategic Planning 
Framework

Strategic Plan
Community

Long Term with a 4 year delivery focus. 
Planning for the vision and aspirations of the Adelaide capital city.

Long Term Financial Plan
Financial

10 year Plan, revised annually to ensure a 10 year view is maintained.  
Planning for the long term financial sustainability of the City of Adelaide. 

Asset Management Plans
Infrastructure

Suite of 10 year Plans. 
Planning for the sustainable renewal and maintenance of Council assets.

City Plan
Development / Built form

10 year Spatial Plan.
Planning for the future land uses and built form of the Adelaide capital city.

Structure of the Strategic Plan 2024-2028 and supporting documents:

Vision A vision for the future of Adelaide. A leading aspirational statement summarising the 
focus of the plan and guiding decision-making on the future of the City

Aspirations That help articulate the vision, expressed as outcomes which help shape future policy 
positions of Council.

Long Term considerations

Principles Inform primary areas of focus to drive outcomes across the four-year plan 

Objectives and 
Strategies Describe what will be achieved and the strategies employed.

Key Actions What is being delivered under each objective relevant to Council’s responsibilities 
(How we will do it)

Targets Provide an understanding of what long term success looks like (Measures of Success)

Short Term considerations

Resource Plan

The Strategic Plan is supported by a Resource Plan - the financial, and non-financial resources required for the 
Administration to enable and support the Strategic Plan’s four-year delivery over 2024-2028. 

Page 14



5   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  PLAN

Vision

Our Adelaide.

Bold in our 
approach.
Proud of 
who we are.

5   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  PLAN
Page 15



6 

Our Community:  
Our community will be vibrant,  

connected and diverse

Our Environment:   
Our environment will be resilient,  

protected and sustainable

Our Economy:  
Our economy will be growing,  

innovative and responsive

Our Places:  
Our places will be interesting,  

purposeful and safe

Supported by:

Our Corporation:  
Our Corporation will be high performing, 

customer-centric and bold

Aspirations

To deliver the Strategic Plan 
aspirations, we are committed to the 
following principles :

•	 Be bold and courageous in our 
pursuit of excellence for our city

•	 Strive for liveability and affordability 
to attract and retain residents

•	 Strengthen community connection, 
accessibility, diversity and inclusivity 
by putting people first

•	 Create interesting experiences for 
our residents, workers and visitors

•	 Embed climate resilience in all that 
we do

•	 Encourage investment and 
development in emerging sectors 
such as knowledge intensive and 
health and education industries

•	 Provide quality services and ensure 
long-term financial sustainability

Each of these contribute to delivering 
on our Vision and aspirations and sit 
across all of our objectives over the 
short term.

Principles

To give focus to the Council’s programs and budgeting 
to achieve this Plan, the following provides a delivery 
plan under each aspiration, across the next four years. 
Each aspiration is broken down into key objectives 
which Council will seek to achieve during this period, 
which is supported by Key Actions and Targets and 
Measures.

The priorities identified within this document are 
articulated as Key Actions under each Aspiration and 
will move Adelaide towards a bright future. Successful 
delivery will have a positive impact on our city and 
community, helping to make Adelaide bold, iconic and 
vibrant, creating connections to place and supporting 
social and business innovation and growth. 

Page 16



Objective Strategies to achieve the objectives:

Support our 
communities to thrive

•	 Work with partners to attract and retain residents in our city 
•	 Provide services that foster connection, resilience, inclusion and 

wellbeing, making Adelaide a comfortable place to live
•	 Create opportunities for people to expand knowledge and skills, to 

learn and master
•	 Enable community led services 

Create fun, lively and 
interesting experiences  

•	 Work with partners to provide a diverse range of events, activations, 
art, culture and sense of place 

•	 Provide services that enlighten, celebrate and enrich

Celebrate and honour 
our history and 
cultures 

•	 Prioritise reconciliation and recognition of First Nations people and 
culture

•	 Celebrate and protect Kaurna culture and connection to country
•	 Protect, share and elevate our heritage and history
•	 Provide services that celebrate diversity, our past and our future

Measures of success - 
Targets:

•	 Support an increase in the 
number of people living in the 
city from 26,000 to 50,000 by 
2036

•	 Support diversity in residents 
by increasing the share of 
family households from 12.5% 
to 15%

•	 Contribute towards increased 
resident wellbeing from 70% 
life satisfaction to 75%

How we will do it -  
Key Actions:

•	 Zero Functional Homelessness by 2026
•	 Encourage events and activations through 

partnerships, grants and sponsorships
•	 Encourage increased participation at cultural 

experiences facilitated or supported by the City of 
Adelaide

•	 Support increased residential growth through 
partnerships and advocacy

•	 Increase the number of Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander led community’s reconciliation activities

To enable Our Community to be 
vibrant, connected and diverse, we will:

7   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  PLAN
Page 17



Objective Strategies to achieve the objectives:

Protect, enhance, and 
activate our Parklands 
and open space

•	 Promote the status, attributes and character of the Park Lands by 
protecting and strengthening their integrity and value

•	 Enhance the environmental value, productivity, quality and 
biodiversity of the Park Lands, squares, open space and streetscapes

•	 Create opportunities for community led activation and recreation

Be climate conscious 
and resilient 

•	 Evolve and implement our climate adaptation actions in response to 
the impacts of climate change

•	 Work with our partners to plan for and lead a climate resilient future
•	 Embed climate resilience considerations in all that we do

Prioritise sustainability 
in our decisions for the 
future

•	 Integrate sustainable, systems, materials and practices in developing 
our city

•	 Facilitate and support the circular economy
•	 Provide progressive waste management and resource recovery 

services

Measures of success - 
Targets:

•	 Support a reduction in the City’s 
greenhouse gas emissions of 42% 
from the 2020 baseline by 2030, 
in line with the science of what 
is required to maintain global 
warming to well below 2oC.

•	 Work with the community to 
reduce the amount of kerbside 
waste sent to landfill from 50% to 
65%

•	 Increase tree canopy cover to 
40% by 2028

How we will do it -  
Key Actions:

•	 Increase green infrastructure
•	 Use sustainable systems, practice and materials in 

our projects
•	 Drive climate resilience through adaptation actions
•	 Enhance biodiversity in the Park Lands
•	 Increase our resource recovery
•	 Ensure 100% of our infrastructure investment 

includes climate resilient measures
•	 Increase number of trees planted in the Park Lands 

and improved replacement ratios for any trees that 
are remoevd in the CBD

To enable Our Environment to be resilient, 
protected and sustainable, we will:

8 
Page 18



Objective Strategies to achieve the objectives:

Continue to grow 
our economy in 
alignment with the 
Community

•	 Reinforce the position of Adelaide as the State’s central business district
•	 Make our precincts great places to visit and operate businesses within
•	 Work with our partners to achieve a critical mass of jobs, capital and 

collaboration and ensure investment attraction and business retention
•	 Support an inclusive and fair city economy, enabling residents access to 

jobs and key workers access to accommodation in the city

Support existing 
businesses to 
be agile and 
responsive to 
change

•	 Provide services that support investors, entrepreneurs and business 
owners to be successful, innovative and responsive to a rapidly changing 
business environment

•	 Create and capitalise on opportunities that attract visitors to the city
•	 Contribute towards the growth of emerging sectors in our city, such as 

medical, technology and knowledge sector

Create strong 
skilled workforces

•	 Provide opportunities for employment and encourage skilled workforces
•	 Amplify Adelaide’s reputation as a place to learn and work, reinforcing 

that Adelaide is a great place to work and start a business
•	 Create demand for high skilled jobs in established and emerging sectors 

(to become a higher productivity economy)
•	 Work with partners to create alignment of skills and knowledge with 

employment opportunities

Measures of success - 
Targets:

•	 Support the increase of local 
employment in the city from 
157,500 to 160,000 by 2028

•	 Support the growth of the local 
economy from $22 billion to $25 
billion by 2028

•	 Support an increase of businesses 
who think the city is a good place 
to do business from 64% to 75%

•	 Achieve office occupancy above 
85% 

How we will do it -  
Key Actions:

•	 Develop a City of Adelaide 2024-2028 Economic 
Development Strategy

•	 Progress the Strategic Property Review
•	 Complete Major developments with partners at 

88 O’Connell, Market Square and the former Bus 
Station

•	 Create the new Smart Visitor Experience Centre
•	 Work with partners to support the enhancement 

of skills and knowledge of the local workforce

To enable Our Economy to be growing, 
innovative and responsive, we will:

9   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  PLAN
Page 19



Objective Strategies to achieve the objectives:

Manage assets to 
meet the needs of our 
community

•	 Responsibly maintain and adapt our community assets
•	 Create new assets to meet emerging community needs
•	 Protect our heritage and culturally significant places

Encourage bold, 
interesting and 
purposeful 
development

•	 Make it easy to develop and activate in our city 
•	 Support the development of diverse and affordable places to live 
•	 Maintain the character while encouraging adaptive reuse, 

repurposing and upgrading buildings 
•	 Foster our mainstreets, precincts and neighbourhoods, participation 

in development decisions
•	 Work with partners to deliver bold and purposeful developments

Facilitate and activate 
our places in a safe 
and accessible way for 
our community

•	 Foster city pride through the delivery of accessible and interesting 
environments for all

•	 Ensure ease and diversity of movement into, and throughout the city 
•	 Responsibly deliver regulatory services and work with partners to 

create safe and healthy places for our community
•	 Provide services and places that make Adelaide unique

Measures of success - 
Targets:

•	 Increase perception of people 
who feel safe in public spaces 
in the city from 86% (2022) to 
90%

•	 Increase the number of 
people who agree that the 
city is a welcoming and 
dynamic place full of rich and 
diverse experiences (from 82% 
(2022) to 85%

•	 Increase the number of 
people who visit the city from 
2.1 million to 2.5 million

How we will do it -  
Key Actions:

•	 Deliver street upgrades and mainstreet, precinct, and 
neighbourhood revitalisation and improvements

•	 Support the maintenance and development of bold and 
interesting community, cultural and civic places and 
infrastructure in step with residential growth

•	 Encourage repurposing, adaptive reuse and 
improvement of buildings and facilities

•	 Support healthy, safe and accessible places through 
the development of integrated approaches such as the 
Transport Strategy

•	 Develop a City Plan that provide guidance on City 
Growth

To enable Our Places to be interesting, 
purposeful and safe, we will:

10 
Page 20



Objective Strategies to achieve the objectives:

Effective 
Leadership and 
Governance 

•	 	Demonstrate bold leadership and robust governance with our community 
at the heart of our decisions

•	 Enable accountability and transparency at all times in decision making 
•	 Manage risks 
•	 Articulate Local responsibilities and foster, National and International 

partnerships that move our state into the future
•	 Ensure responsible stewardship of community assets and resources

Exceptional 
Customer 
Experience 

•	 Listen to our community and respond to their feedback
•	 Focus on the experience of our customers to ensure outcomes meet 

expectations 
•	 Promote and communicate the work of Council
•	 Embed the customer perspective in decision-making

Financial 
Sustainability

•	 Ensure responsible financial management through the principle of 
intergenerational equity while delivering quality services 

•	 Effectively manage operating and capital budgets 
•	 Improve service efficiency by identifying new revenue streams and creating 

new opportunities for income

People 
Engagement

•	 Create meaningful employment opportunities 
•	 Provide development, training and growth for our workforce
•	 Work together to build successful teams and partnerships
•	 Enable bold experienced leadership to support a thriving workforce

1 1   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  PLAN

To enable Our Corporation to be bold, high 
performing and customer centric, we will :

Page 21



12 

Measures of success - 
Targets:

•	 Asset Renewal Funding Ratio 
to be between 90% and 110%

•	 Annual Forecast Financial 
Indicators are in line with 
annual targets (as outlined in 
the LTFP)

•	 Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander Employment Rate 
greater than 2%

•	 75% of Strategic Projects are 
delivered on time and budget

•	 Overall satisfaction of Council 
services is greater than 75%

How we will do it -  
Key Actions:

•	 Foster robust governance, capital city leadership and 
strong strategic partnerships  

•	 Deliver business performance and improvements 
including the implementation of the Business 
Systems Roadmap

•	 Maintain Financial Sustainability and 
intergenerational equity

•	 Create a workplace where people thrive and deliver a 
workforce strategy

•	 Integrate community consultation and customer 
experience into our service planning and delivery

•	 Determine future funding requirements for 
community assets such as the enhancement to 
Torrens Weir and replacement/strengthening of 
Adelaide Bridge

•	 Develop a business case to infom Council decisions in 
relation to the future of Rundle UPark

Objective Strategies to achieve the objectives:

Strategy, Value 
and Efficiency

•	 Create cohesive plans and policies that support our city and our community 
and enable the service provision to meet expectations

•	 Monitor and analyse delivery of Council services to identify achievement 
and opportunities for improvement

•	 Ensure we maintain and adapt our range of quality services to continuously 
improve the value and service efficiency.

•	 Source data and evidence to inform research and insights that support 
decision making

•	 Be responsive to new ideas and opportunities for valuable services of the 
future

Technology and 
Information

•	 Be resourceful and innovative with the technology resources we have
•	 Focus on digital opportunities to support our future workforce
•	 Use data and technology to drive meaningful delivery
•	 Integrated technology solutions that improve access to information, 

streamline processes, and facilitate collaboration to support customers

Page 22



Resource
Plan
2024 -2028
Council has also developed a Resource Plan which 
underpins this Plan by outlining the financial, 
and non-financial resources required for the 
Administration to enable and support the Strategic 
Plan’s four-year implementation over 2024-2028. 
The Strategic Plan and the Resource Plan will work 
in concert with the Long-Term Financial Plan, 
Asset Management Plans and City Plan to inform 
the Annual Business Plan and Budget. Council’s 
decision making is informed by strategies, plans 
and policies that articulate the provision of services, 
programs and projects. Program Plans ensure 
all work is planned and delivered. The role of a 
capital city council is diverse and complex, with 
our core responsibility being to deliver services to 
the community. The diversity of our responsibilities 
to ratepayers, visitors, workers, residents, key 
stakeholders and indeed the State of South Australia 
impacts the way our services are delivered. We have 
a number of roles ranging from service provider, to 
regulator, to owner and facilitator and advocate. 
By measuring the delivery of our objectives and key 
actions, our community will know what we have 
achieved. These targets provide further direction 
to ensure we are delivering on our vision for the 
future, while allowing Council to measure and 
track progress, which is reported annually and 
documented in each Annual Report. 

Page 23



14 

Financial Principles
To deliver on our priorities and ensure financial 
sustainability for current and future generations, 
the below Financial Principles have been applied:

•	 Transparency in decision making 
•	 Continue to deliver a minimum of the current 

suite of services and asset maintenance, indexed 
in line with Consumer Price Index (CPI)

•	 Fees and charges reflect cost of services provided 
•	 Maintain the existing rating system 
•	 Maintain an operating surplus 
•	 Capitalise on external funding, fast-tracking 

projects that attract such funding, recognising 
the potential need for increased borrowings 
in order to respond to external funding 
opportunities 

•	 Consider new and different revenue streams 
and the approach to commercial businesses to 
reduce reliance on existing revenue sources 

•	 Adjust rate revenue after consideration of all 
other budget components and use growth 
in rate revenue to partly fund servicing 
new rateable properties and to service new 
borrowings

•	 New or enhanced services, assets or 
maintenance requiring an increase in operating 
costs are to be funded from the adjustment 
of priorities, rate revenue or other revenue 
increases and/or through savings 

•	 Capital renewal expenditure will be based on 
asset management plans 

•	 Consider the disposal, purchase and /or 
repurposing of property assets to unlock the 
potential and future prosperity of the City, 
without incurring a financial loss 

•	 Borrowings will be used to fund new and 
upgrade projects (which include major projects) 
and not used to fund operations, expenses or 
renewal projects

Financial

 
When considering these principles, Council also 
considers its roles and responsibilities for both 
existing and future projects and developments. 
Council will decide on its role after considering the 
extent to which the service/project:

•	 Is a statutory obligation;
•	 Is required to give effect to an adopted strategy, 

policy or plan;
•	 	Is reasonably within Council’s core responsibility 

and expertise;
•	 Requires Council intervention to address market 

failure; or
•	 Maximises Council’s effectiveness in relation to 

dollars spent.

Council’s Financial Principles ensure that Council’s 
measures and targets can be met with the resources 
(including funding) outlined in the Long Term 
Financial Plan. 

Page 24



Long Term Financial Plan
A high level 10 year Long Term Financial Plan 
has been developed as part of Council’s ongoing 
financial planning to assist Council to plan within a 
longer term strategic framework. 

The key components of the plan are:
•	 Assessment of Council’s current financial position 

and achieving longer term financial sustainability.
•	 Ensuring Financial Principles are met.
•	 Consideration of Council’s appropriate role and 

responsibilities.
•	 Ensuring alignment with the Strategic Plan 

and maintenance of high priority expenditure 
programs

•	 Ensuring alignment with agreed service provision 
and delivery standards.

•	 Ensuring alignment with Revenue and Financing 
guidelines, including Rating and Treasury Policies.

•	 Ensuring alignment with Asset Management 
Plans.

•	 Ensuring alignment with other plans and 
strategies 

•	 Costing proposed strategies before they are 
agreed.

The specific assumptions and outcomes 
underpinning the Long Term Financial Plan are:

•	 Rates Revenue in line with forecast inflation (in 
addition to growth from new developments)

•	 Fees and charges in line with forecast inflation
•	 Salaries and wages forecasts based on enterprise 

agreements; once expired, Wage Price Index (WPI) 
applied

•	 Other revenue and expenditure growth, in 
general, in line with forecast inflation

•	 Interest rates relative to market expectations
•	 Capital renewal expenditure in line with Asset 

Management Plans (AMPs)
•	 Capital enhancements (new and upgrade) in 

line with Council Decision to fund $15m per 
annum over current term of council and assumed 
continuation.

15   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  RESOURCE  PLAN

Financial Sustainability
A focus on financial sustainability ensures Council’s 
financial resources have the capacity to absorb 
cyclical economic factors, social trends and 
financial shocks. Funding decisions therefore play 
an important role in providing Council with the 
capacity to meet financial sustainability in the 
medium and long term. 

Financial sustainability is also central to supporting 
intergenerational equity. Intergenerational equity 
(or fairness) requires the costs associated with 
expenditure to be spread over time in accordance 
with the distribution of the benefits that are 
generated. Intergenerational equity requires 
financial sustainability through the stability of 
revenue and costs, proportionality of revenues 
with benefits over time and a “balanced” operating 
result. 

Council’s Long Term Financial Plan has assumed 
that existing service levels are maintained while 
seeking efficiency improvements in line with 
appropriate planning, measures and benchmarks.

Page 25



16 

Indicators 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28

Operating Surplus Ratio - Target: 0%-20% 0.9% (3.4%)* (4.4%)* 2.0% 1.8%

Net Financial Liabilities - Target: Less than 80% (0.7%) 15% 40% 41% 42%

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio - Target: 90%-110% 90% 92.5% 95.0% 97.5% 100%

Asset Test Ratio - Target: Maximum 50% 10% 13% 18% 19% 20%

Interest Expense Ratio - Target: Maximum 10% 0.4% 1.3% 1.7% 2.0% 2.3%

Leverage Test Ratio - Target: Maximum 1.5 years 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.5 0.5

Cash Flow from Operations Ratio -Target: < than 100% 101% 100% 99% 106% 106%

Borrowings 20% 26% 37% 38% 40%

General Operating
Operating Position

$'000s 2023-24 
Plan

2024-25 
Plan

2025-26 
Plan

2026-27 
Plan

2027-28 
Plan

Income      

Rates Revenues 135,395 139,809 145,177 151,533 156,845

Statutory Charges 14,683 14,990 15,356 15,739 16,132

User Charges 70,002 64,926 63,524 71,043 72,816

Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 4,449 4,547 4,318 4,426 4,536

Investment Income 150 154 157 161 165

Reimbursements 338 346 355 364 373

Other Income 465 477 488 500 513

Total Income 225,481 225,249 229,377 243,766 251,381

Expenses      

Employee Costs 85,013 83,050 85,581 88,215 90,929

Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses 81,672 90,569* 91,328* 85,060 87,183

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 56,040 56,835 59,353 62,012 64,675

Finance Costs 835 2,514 3,122 3,550 4,050

Total Expenses 223,561 232,969 239,384 238,837 246,837

Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 1,920 (7,720) (10,007) 4,929 4,544

Green - within target range.        Yellow - approaching target limits.          Red - outside of target range.
* Impact of Adelaide Aquatic Centre demolition and reinstatement

Four Year (Long Term) Financial Plan
Council’s four year financial plan, taken from the Long Term Financial Plan, provides the funding for Council’s 
Strategic Plan. This period sees significant investment in Council priorities including upgrades to several 
streets, partnerships with the State Government on major projects such as the former Adelaide Aquatic 
Centre site, Strategic Property developments including the Franklin Street Bus Station redevelopment, Market 
Square and 88 O’Connell and ongoing delivery of core services. Significant renewal projects including Torrens 
Weir and King William Street Bridge influence future years.

* Impact of Adelaide Aquatic Centre demolition and reinstatement

Page 26



Other revenue

The Council operates a number of facilities on a fee for service basis. These consist of the Adelaide Aquatic 
Centre, Adelaide Golf Links, UPark, Adelaide Town Hall and the Property Portfolio (including Adelaide 
Central Market). These facilities net revenues provide an important source of funding for Council services 
and programs in addition to rates revenue. Each fee based facility also provides valued facilities for the City’s 
ratepayers and visitors.

In addition, Council generates income from statutory charges, being those set down by State Government 
legislation in addition to other user charges relating to the recovery of service delivery costs through the 
charging of fees including on-street parking-machine tickets and properties’ premises hire income.

Treasury Policy

$'000s 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28

Projections

New Borrowings 20,285 17,504 23,039 6,981 20,285

Principal Paid - - - - -

Gross Borrowings 70,568 87,655 110,694 117,675 123,356

Future Fund 40,384 39,967 39,967 39,967 39,967

Balance 30 June (Net of Future Fund) 30,184 47,688 70,727 77,708 83,389

Prudential Limits

Borrowings 157,628 181,387 191,951 202,867 207,932 

In developing the Long Term Financial Plan, borrowing was identified as an important funding source 
particularly for strategic expenditure relating to new and upgraded projects and activities of the Property 
Portfolio. Borrowing is undertaken in accordance with Council’s Treasury Policy which underpins the Council’s 
decision making in the funding of Council’s operations in the context of cash flow, budgeting, borrowings 
and investments.

17   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  RESOURCE  PLAN

Rate revenue

In developing the Long Term Financial Plan, rates have been identified as an important source of revenue, 
accounting for approximately 60% of the total revenue received by Council annually. Considering future 
growth scenarios for the City and the implications these have on future rate income are important 
considerations across the next four years. Growth to rate income across this period is assumed at 3%, 
primarily from valuation reviews and new builds.

Page 27



18 

Infrastructure and Property

Asset Management

The City of Adelaide owns and is responsible for the management, operation and maintenance of a diverse 
asset portfolio that provides services and facilities for City users. Asset Management Plans have been 
developed to ensure Council continues to provide effective and comprehensive management of its asset 
portfolios. The Plans indicate Council’s 3 year commitment to operate and maintain its asset portfolio 
efficiently to meet strategic and legislative requirements, and to deliver the required levels of service for the 
community. Rolling condition audits provide up-to-date information for the ongoing improvement of assets 
to ensure they inform the Annual Business Plan and Budget.

Renewal and replacement capital expenditure will be based on asset management plans which consider the 
optimal timeframe for asset replacement based on whole of life costing. Total capital expenditure shall be 
managed in a way which avoids disruptive adjustments to activities, programs and revenue raising efforts.

$'000s 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28

Major Projects 36,386 30,917 15,000 15,600 15,500 

New and Upgrades 13,932 520 320 320 320 

Renewal 50,416 48,682 51,932 52,739 54,922 

Total Capital 100,734 80,119 67,252 68,659 70,742

Property and New and Upgraded Assets

Council’s commercial property portfolio plays an important part to meet Council’s strategic objectives 
for growth in the city and also provides additional net revenue to Council. This assists with the funding of 
current expenditure programs and therefore relieves part of the funding requirement on existing rate payers. 
Consequently, it is important that both the value of the portfolio and its returns (both net of borrowings) are 
protected to avoid adverse impacts with regard to intergenerational equity, rates and expenditure programs 
in the future.

The Strategic Property Action Plan aims to optimise the performance of Council’s commercial property 
portfolio. It promotes a partnership approach with the private sector and other tiers of government to 
leverage the value of existing property assets to meet strategic objectives or to sell non-performing assets 
with sale proceeds reinvested into new income generating opportunities. 

Page 28



Service delivery influences
Influences which may impact on the scope and level 
of services to be provided over the next four years 
include:

•	 Local Government Price Index increases 
on relevant goods and services, which has 
historically tracked at approximately 1% above 
the CPI.

•	 Current Enterprise Agreements for most staff 
provide for wages and salary increases of 3% and 
4% from 2024.

•	 Increase in utility charges with indications that 
sustainability premiums will continue into the 
future.

•	 A stronger focus on renewals and maintenance 
of assets, specifically to mainstreets

•	 Service and infrastructure needs for a growing 
and changing population in the City 

•	 Commitments to major projects and partnership 
initiatives 

•	 Council revenue from commercial operations 
and other fees and charges expected to be 
impacted due to fewer people working in the 
city post-COVID-19

•	 Impact of increasing interest rates on Council’s 
borrowings

Resources

Information Technology
Council recognises the need to deliver integrated 
technology solutions that improve access to 
information, streamline processes, safeguards 
our information and systems, and encourage 
collaboration across the organisation, to enable 
the delivery of customer focused services to our 
community.

The Business Systems Roadmap sets out the 
program of works over the next four years in 
Council’s ongoing journey to be a digitally enabled, 
integrated, secure and inclusive Council.

Council recognises the strategic importance of our 
ongoing journey to become a digital organisation 
by ensuing we provided digitally enabled, 
integrated, secure and inclusive services to our 
community.

Council has an ongoing program of works that 
focusses on 4 key areas:

•	 Customers at the centre: - We understand our 
customers and provide services to meet their 
diverse needs

•	 Secure and reliable: - We train our staff and use 
technology to increase safety and security for 
our customers and their information

•	 Data Driven: - We use data and insights to 
improve our engagement and experiences with 
our customers and communities to make better 
and faster decisions.

•	 Seamless: - Our services are simple, intuitive, 
with purpose and seamless for a better 
experience for our customers and communities

19   C ITY  OF  ADELA IDE  DRAFT  2024  -  2028  STRATEGIC  RESOURCE  PLAN
Page 29



20 

Our People

As the Council rolls out its new Strategic Plan, it 
must be confident that appropriate resourcing 
capacity and capability is available to deliver 
on these responsibilities and be responsive to 
new and emerging challenges. Strong workforce 
planning enables the Corporation to attract, 
develop and retain the skills, knowledge and 
experience required to deliver across the duration 
of the Strategic Plan, and creating a performance 
culture in which individuals are aligned to 
delivering organisational priorities.  

The Corporation, in the way it supports 
customers, conducts business, delivers services, 
develops its people and supports good 
governance must reflect the Council’s vision 
and enable its achievement. This calls for an 
organisation that is genuinely responsive to 
the changing needs of people, business and 
communities. It means building an organisation 
that plans for the future and one that also 
delivers for today.

It is proposed that a focus on efficiencies and 
continuous improvement will enable the number 
of FTEs required to be maintained at current 
levels over the four year period. At times, 
consultancy services or additional contract or 
temporary staff will be required to ensure our 
service delivery and people resources are scalable. 

$'000s 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28

Our Community 95.7 69.4 69.4 69.4 69.4

Our Environment 40.2 39.2 39.2 39.2 39.2

Our Economy 157 157 157 157 157

Our Places 321.3 321.3 321.3 321.3 321.3

Our Corporation 160.6 174.4 170.4 170.4 170.4

TOTAL 774.8 761.3 757.3 757.3 757.3

Employee Values and behaviours
At City of Adelaide our values provide the context 
for how we work together and with others. They are 
the standard against which we hold ourselves and 
others accountable. We are committed to building 
a high performing, inclusive and sustainable 
workplace for the future that is based on and 
fosters these values and recognises alignment to 
them is integral to our culture.

•	 Achievement
•	 Collaboration
•	 Customer Commitment
•	 Integrity 
•	 Innovation

Our Corporation’s Purpose 
As an organisation we will be:

•	 An exceptional service provider
•	 A reliable and trusted partner
•	 A professional administrator
•	 A high achieving, best practice organisation 

Page 30



25 Pirie Street Adelaide
South Australia 5000
cityofadelaide.com.au

Page 31



City of Adelaide
Future of the city – Strategic Leader Visioning Report
August 2023 I Ref 12115

P
age 32

A
ttachm

ent B



12115 | CITY OF ADELAIDE | FUTURE OF THE CITY - STRATEGIC LEADER INTERVIEWS | AUGUST 2023 

Methodology

This research project was conducted by McGregor Tan from 26th June to 9th August 2023

Market research has been 

conducted in accordance with 

ISO 20252.

This research aims to gather insights

from strategic leaders to help inform

Council decisions and contribute to

shaping the city's future.

A total of 11 in-depth interviews were

facilitated.

This involved engaging with

community, Government and business

leaders from diverse organisations

based in Adelaide.

Over the past 40 years, McGregor Tan 

has grown to be one of the largest 

independent market and social 

research companies in Australia.

We have achieved this through the 

vision of our researchers which is 

underpinned by a strong company 

ethos respecting tradition while driving 

innovation and new technologies. 

2

P
age 33



Executive summary

P
age 34



12115 | CITY OF ADELAIDE | FUTURE OF THE CITY - STRATEGIC LEADER INTERVIEWS | AUGUST 2023 4

STRENGTHS

Executive summary:

Known for quality hospitality and major events:
Adelaide hosts a number of world-renowned events and has a strong reputation for a
diverse and high-quality hospitality culture. These attributes are seen by many as the
city’s lifeblood and that further support to the hospitality and events sector is needed in
the future.

A city of opportunities:
Adelaide offers a blend of affordability and convenience, creating an appealing quality of
life for families, professionals, and students. Its safe environment, accessible amenities,
and dynamic lifestyle is attractive for people who enjoy inner city living. For
professionals, the central location fosters work-life balance, while students benefit from
integrated education and city living. Adelaide thrives as a city of opportunities for all.

A livable city with a high standard of living:
Adelaide is a liveable city, offering a high standard of living at a reasonable cost. Its well-
structured grid system and historic charm make it an accessible and easy to navigate
metropolitan centre. A vibrant culture, quality amenities, and natural beauty makes it a
compelling choice for residents, workers and visitors alike.

Small scale city:
Adelaide's scale sets it apart from larger cities, enabling a more intimate connection
between residents and surroundings, fostering a sense of belonging and avoiding
overwhelming hustle.

A city within a park:
Adelaide's "City within a park" identity blends urban life with natural beauty. Its grid
layout and abundant parklands creates a unique metropolitan environment. Yet,
untapped potential in certain areas call for strategies to activate these spaces year-
round.

Population density:
Adelaide’s future hinges on sustainable population growth, necessitating strategic
placemaking and transitioning to 24 hour economy. Council's role in providing quality
amenities and supporting projects that facilitate desirable growth will be key to
attracting residents, students, workers, and innovators to the city.

CHALLENGES

Need for a progressive and cohesive approach:
Adelaide's success relies on cooperation between industry associations, State
Government, neighboring councils, and within the Adelaide City Council
administration itself. This collective approach will allow for clear direction, essential
for overcoming challenges and fostering unity in strategic vision. Whilst there is an
appetite for development, it is perceived that a “not in my backyard” attitude is
dominating Council decision making.

Conservative mindset:
Council delivers its core services to a high standard however is perceived to be
conservative in its approach to growth and development. To lead Adelaide into the
next phase, participants believe the Council needs to demonstrate and widely
communicate its commitment to new ideas, innovation and growth.

Residential housing:
Enabling population growth creates a need for delivering suitable residential
development; from affordable housing options to family friendly and higher end
homes. Council’s current approach to re-purposing underutilized buildings into
residential accommodation is applauded by many, others would like to see more
focus on supporting higher quality projects to attract more professionals and families
to the city.
Underutilized areas and further enhancing precincts:
Addressing dormant pockets within the city, including revitalizing parklands, laneways
and main streets is crucial for enhancing its vibrancy. Inactivate areas hinder urban
vitality and community engagement.

P
age 35



12115 | CITY OF ADELAIDE | FUTURE OF THE CITY - STRATEGIC LEADER INTERVIEWS | AUGUST 2023 5

FUTURE VISION

Executive summary:

Home to a vibrant knowledge economy:
Adelaide has the potential to be a vibrant knowledge hub, bolstered by leading
universities and a biomedical district. This vision requires fostering innovation, attracting
a wide range of employer businesses/ organisations and being able to meet the needs of
the workforce that is attracted to these opportunities. Collaboration with industries and
institutions is crucial.

Adelaide; always on:
To thrive, many believe Adelaide must cultivate a 24-hour economy. Leveraging events
and boosting population density fuels economic vibrancy, creating demand for extended
nightlife and dining. A number of precincts are well placed to be supported to grow into
areas with later and longer trading, however the population growth and corresponding
demand must first be addressed.

A capital city within a park:
A greener Adelaide, where streets and pathways are enriched with greenery is a vision
many leaders would like to see for the city. Collaborations with businesses and
educational institutions to add greenery to buildings, lighting and road verges will
support the "city within a park" ethos.

A global leader in higher education:
Collaboration with education and research institutions is pivotal for this vision's viability.
While this is perceived to be a State Government role, leaders believe Council’s support
in developing a vibrant and exciting city for students and residents is essential.

A city with unique precincts:
Adelaide is already blessed with a number of distinct precincts. Further activation,
transforming them into vibrant neighborhoods, inspired by global examples, will make
the city more appealing for future residents, workers and businesses looking for places
that align with their vibe and values. Enabling precincts to develop their own identities
can create authentic and dynamic community-driven activations.

Adopt a growth mindset, be enablers:
Council’s role in stewarding the city into the next phase will require a growth mindset.
Participants believe this is achieved through removing the “not in my backyard” lens
to growth and development, having a united public facing position to major strategic
issues and proactively enabling businesses through transparent communication and
streamlined processes.

COUNCIL’S ROLE

Proactive and transparent communications:
Proactive communication is key for Adelaide's transformation. The council's
transparent dialogue with residents, businesses, and stakeholders fosters
collaboration and reinforces a shared purpose. Through effective communication,
particularly regarding developments and growth industries, is considered a key role of
Local Government, regardless if it is pertaining to Council led, private enterprise or
State Government projects. The community look to Council for all things “Adelaide”,
and leaders believe more can be done in this space from the administration in
addition to the Mayor’s strong communications and social media presence.

Advocacy role in environmental sustainability:
As the capital city of a State which has a strong history of regenerative practices and
environmental policy, participants believe Adelaide City Council should play a
leadership role in advocating for environmental sustainability. Initiatives like water-
sensitive urban design, green economic zones, and communicating their own Impact
Plan and ESG Policy would position Adelaide as a leader in the Local Government
Sector.

Focus on the fundamentals:
Maintaining Adelaide’s highly desirable standard of living hinges on foundational
elements, with particular emphasis on cleanliness, urban aesthetics, and safety. The
council is crucial in shaping a welcoming, safe and attractive city, which many believe
should be the priority for council’s future strategy.

P
age 36



C i t y o f A d e l a i d e S t r a t e g i c P l a n R e v i e w P r o j e c t 
 

Project Timeline 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Nov/Dec/  
March April June July August September September 

 

 
Jan/Feb 

 
 

         
 

      Vision and Refining Strategic 
Receive Initial ADOPT  

    Proposed Project State of the City Preliminary Plan structure  

 Strategic  Finances, Market Research Draft Strategic  

  Approach and data and Themes impact on  

 Management  Services, & and consider the Plan for  

  Preliminary information  Strategic  

 Framework Assets Discussion  Draft Strategic Community  

 structure analysis Engagement with Management  

    

Plan Engagement 
 

      
Community Framework  

        
 

30 Nov, 24 Jan, 7 
    

25 July 
  12 September 

 

 
4 March 18 April 18 July 15 and 22 August 5 September 

Engagement to occur 
 

 and 20 Feb  Engage 28 July – 11 Aug 15 Sept–30 Oct  

        

         Min 6 weeks 
 

Elected Member Portal,  Elected Member Elected Member Elected Member Portal Elected Member Portal Committee / Council Special Committee Council Decision 
 

 Training and  Portal, Training and Portal, Training and Committee Workshop/ Committee Workshop Decision   
 

 Workshops  Workshops Workshops Council Decision and Council Decision     
 

 Focus  Focus Focus Focus Focus Focus Focus Focus 
 

Introduction to: Introduction to: Provision of the Administration to Vision & theme Refine the structure Receive the Endorse the Draft 
 

▪ Strategy, ▪ Services and proposed Strategic present data, insights development of the plan, including analysis of the Strategic Plan for 
 

 Finance and  Program Plans Plan project and analysis on the discussions Vision, aspiration Market Research Community 
 

 Assets ▪ Asset approach and city that will support 
Endorsement of 

and priorities and consider the Engagement, 
 

▪ Strategic Plan  Management timelines planning for strategic 
Endorse structure for 

community and commencing 15 
 

 and Services  Plans and Elected Member outcomes. initial community stakeholder September to 30 
 

▪ Strategic  Capital projects discussion on Early discussion on pre-engagement the Strategic Plan Feedback October. 
 

 Management ▪ Budgets, structure of plan key themes/focus approach to be and seek input 
Receive a Draft 

 
 

 Framework  revenue, and timeframe to areas conducted in August including measures  
 

▪ Research and  borrowings and deliver  (commissioning and review. Strategic Plan and  
 

 Engagement  debt Community  McGregor to conduct 
Provide information 

discuss  
 

  ▪ Long Term Engagement  800 person survey to 
Receive a 

 
 

   Financial Plans discussion  inform development on the Market  
 

      of the Strategic Plan) research and Proposed  
 

       Strategic Resource engagement  
 

    

*Administration will 
  Plan approach for the  

 

       Draft Strategic Plan  
 

    continue with      
 

    Project delivery in      
 

    May      
 

 
 
 
 
 

November Nov/Dec 
 

ADOPT 
ADOPT  

Community  

Final  

Engagement  

Document 
 

Feedback  

 
 

21 November 21 November 
 

28 November 12 December 
 

Council Decision Committee / Council 
 

Focus Focus 
 

Hold a meeting to Committee to 
 

consider the receive a final 
 

community Strategic Plan for 
 

feedback and the consideration 
 

analysis ahead of the 
 

Adopt the 
adoption by 

 

Council 12 
 

engagement December 
 

feedback and  
 

consider how this  
 

may impact the  
 

final Strategic Plan  
 

Discuss any  
 

potential changes  
 

to Strategic Plan  
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

  

P
age 37

A
ttachm

ent C


	Agenda
	3.1 Draft Strategic Plan 2024-2028 for Consultation
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS
	DISCUSSION
	ATTACHMENTS
	Attachment A for Draft 2024-28 Strategic Plan - Special CFG Meeting
	Attachment B – Summary results from McGregor Tan research
	Attachment C for Draft 2024-28 Strategic Plan - Strategic Plan Project Review Timeline




